
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
November 12, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – October 22, 2013 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A) – Proposed Galleria of Troy 

Phase II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned 
BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 989) – Proposed Holiday Inn, 

Northeast corner of Maple Road and Research Drive, Section 26, Currently Zoned GB 
(General Business) District 

 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Chatwal Estates, 15 

units/lots, North side of Wattles, West of Rochester, Section 15, Currently Zoned R-1C (One 
Family Residential) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
8. 2014 MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 22, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:03 p.m. on October 22, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-10-081 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-10-082 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 22, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Terry Adams of 5970 Sussex, Troy, addressed the Sunoco pipeline going in at the 
southeast corner of Square Lake and Adams as relates to the safety of residents. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Krent reported on the October 15, 2013 Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the October 16, 2013 Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
meeting was canceled; the meeting is rescheduled for October 30, 2013. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported Public Hearings are scheduled at the November 11, 2013 City 
Council meeting for the following applications: 

• CR 009 Troy Marriot Hotels 
• PUD 10-A Kilmer Place 

 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 985) – Proposed Oakland Troy 

Senior Project, Southeast Corner of Square Lake and Adams, Section 20, Currently 
Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the Sunoco pipeline improvements, to which Mr. Adams 
referred under Public Comments.  Mr. Savidant said an application for the 
improvements should have been processed through the Planning Department prior to 
construction.  Follow-up discussions with Sunoco resulted in the submission of a 
landscape plan, of which is the purview of the City administration.  The plan proposes to 
seamlessly transition the landscaping with the proposed Oakland Troy Senior Project. 
 
Mr. Savidant extended apologies to the neighbors and offered assistance going forward 
with questions, concerns or copies of the landscape plan, of which a copy has been 
provided to Mr. Adams. 
 
Mr. Carlisle highlighted the revisions to the site plan since it was last reviewed by the 
Planning Commission.  He corrected errors in his written report, stating the applicant is 
compliant with both the required number of parking spaces and bicycle parking.  Mr. 
Carlisle addressed building access in relation to the parking lot, screening along the 
east property line and the recommendations of the Traffic Consultant’s review. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 22, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Carlisle addressed a written communication received from John Mills of 5755 
Sussex with respect to the definition of ‘senior assisted living’ in the Zoning Ordinance.  
Mr. Carlisle stated the definition is listed in Article 2, under “Senior Housing”.  He 
confirmed the use of a senior assisted living facility is permissible in residential districts. 
 
There was discussion on: 

• Screening residential. 
o vehicular lights 
o additional vegetation 
o 3 foot height restriction in front yard 
 seek variance 
 3 feet screening on top of berm 

• Dumpster location. 
• Parking, staff and visitors. 

 
Lorenzo Cavaliere was present to represent the applicant.  He addressed the building 
orientation and building access as relates to pedestrian circulation, as well as visitor 
patterns, code access and security cameras.  Mr. Cavaliere said entry points must be 
controlled for security and safety purposes.  The north entrance would be the main 
entrance for visitors; the east and west entrances for deliveries and staff.  Mr. Cavaliere 
said the layout of the building is practical and internally works for the facility.  He also 
addressed the screening/vegetation proposed on the east property line. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
The following persons spoke in opposition. 
 
Kathy Mills of 5755 Sussex; addressed letter submitted by John Mills. 
Terry Adams of 5970 Sussex; addressed screening.  
Bob Tourtillott of 5900 Adams; addressed noise (emergency vehicles), dumpster. 
Jennifer Myers of 2770 Lenox; addressed landscaping, parking. 
Roger Howard of 5726 Sussex; addressed level of care, licensing, unit size, location. 
Marge Qualmann of 2914 Lenox; addressed building size, parking. 
Ron Paulinski of 5712 Sussex; addressed development in general. 
Lois Kruse of 2850 Lenox; addressed parking, dumpster. 
Salvatore Delisi of 5856 Adams; addressed stormwater management, building size. 
Robert Gosselin of 5773 Sussex; addressed residential zoning district, original subdivision plat. 
Marian Beer of 5920 Adams; addressed easy accessibility to home’s private driveway. 
Susan Haven of 5940 Sussex; addressed Sunoco tanker, pipeline improvements. 
Denise Smith of 2847 Arlund Way; addressed consideration of residents’ concerns. 
Lenore Paxton of 5900 Sussex; addressed respect for residential community. 
Chuck Ohman of 2800 Lenox; addressed trash, traffic, location. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 22, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

There was further discussion on: 
• Screening of headlights.  
• Subdivision deed restrictions; due diligence responsibility of homeowners. 
• Potential ‘other’ uses for parcel. 
• Building orientation / parking around building. 
• Application meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements; minor deficiencies relate to 

screening along Sussex and site circulation. 
 
Ms. Lancaster informed the Board that the City would be open to a lawsuit should the 
Board deny the application because the use is permitted by right and all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements are met. 
 
Mr. Cavaliere stated deliveries would occur between the hours of 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. and 
offered to work with the Planning Department with respect to screening residential 
properties along Sussex and Arlund Way. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-10-083 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the application to the November 26, 2013 Special/Study 
meeting so the applicant can come back with a site plan that delineates the proposed 
screening along Sussex Drive and Arlund Way, and further to research the building 
orientation as relates to parking and pedestrian circulation. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Kempen, Krent, Schepke, Schultz, Strat, Tagle 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson said the applicant meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements and is entitled 
to get approval at this meeting. 

 
___________ 

 
Chair Tagle requested a recess at 8:15 p.m.; the meeting reconvened at 8:23 p.m. 

___________ 
 
9. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 409) – 

Proposed Faith Lutheran Church, West side of Dequindre, North of Big Beaver (37635 
Dequindre), Section 24, Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle said the applicant held a neighborhood meeting on October 5 and outlined the 
plan that was agreed upon at that meeting.  He noted all of the fencing is on the property 
line.  Mr. Carlisle said there were no other changes from the earlier submittal.  The 25-foot 
tree collar and mature trees would remain and the underbrush would be cleared.  Mr. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 22, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

Carlisle recommended Special Use approval and Preliminary Site Plan approval with the 
condition that the hours of field use are limited to no later than 9:00 p.m. 
 
The petitioner, Joseph Casiglia, and Nathan Robinson, the project engineer, were 
present. 
 
Mr. Casiglia addressed the meeting in which nine households were represented and the 
unanimous decision reached as relates to screening.  He said field play would be 
organized to keep the youngest children at the northwest end of the property, where 
there is continuous fencing. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Colleen Geyer of 2816 Majestic Court was present to represent the neighborhood and 
expressed full support of the plan that is in front of Board this evening. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
  
Resolution # PC-2013-10-084 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
improvements proposed for Faith Lutheran Church, West side of Dequindre, North of 
Big Beaver (37635 Dequindre), Section 24, Currently Zoned R-1D (One Family 
Residential) District be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Hours of field use are limited to no later than 9:00 p.m.  
2. Fencing shown on Sheet 1 is binding; Landscape Plan shall be revised to be made 

consistent with fencing shown on Sheet 1 prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Kempen, Krent, Schepke, Strat, Tagle 
No: Schultz 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Schultz said the fence should be consistent for all adjacent property owners and 
that select property homeowners extorted property from the church. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – Hi-Lex Property (1055 W. Square Lake 
Road), Southwest corner of Square Lake Road and Crooks Road, Section 8, Currently 
Zoned RC (Research Center) District 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced the potential development project and outlined options for 
utilizing the building for indoor commercial recreation. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 22, 2013 
  
 
 

6 
 

Present were: 
Ron Reynolds, Vercruysse Murray & Calzone PC 
Mike Topolewski, Hi-Lex Controls 
Joe Banja, Real Estate Broker 
 
Mr. Reynolds briefly addressed the proposed use of the building, noting the building has 
been vacant for the past six years.  He said the use as a gymnastics facility on the first 
floor and office on the second floor would be complementary as relates to parking. 
 
There was discussion on: 

• Spot zoning. 
• Isolation of subject property. 
• Parking. 
• Conditional rezoning, limited uses, go with the land in the future. 

 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Fred Laws of 581 Colebrook stated his company has a serious interest in the subject 
property to bring in and start up an automotive prototype/engineering firm. 
 
Mr. Reynolds agreed they were approached by the company a few weeks earlier.  To 
date, no offer has been made and other potential sites are still in the running.  Mr. 
Reynolds said going forward with a conditional rezoning would not stop an offer to 
purchase. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 

11. JOINT PLANNING COMMISSION / CITY COUNCIL MEETING – November 26, 2013 
 
Mr. Carlisle asked the Board if they would like to focus on a particular topic, and/or if 
they wish to add any specific topics to the agenda. 
 
The consensus was to: 

• Add “Signs” as a topic. 
• Ask City administration of its meeting ‘intent’ and ‘direction’. 
• Consider meeting facilitator. 

 
12. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 22, 2013 
  
 
 

7 
 

13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 

There were general Planning Commission comments.   
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:08 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 10 22 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



  PC 2013.11.12 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
DATE: November 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A) – Proposed Galleria 

of Troy Phase II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, 
Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
The petitioner Galleria of Troy LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for two hotels.  This application comprises Phase II of the buildout plan for 
this site.  Phase I, which is under construction, includes two restaurants and a retail building 
along the Big Beaver frontage.   
 
The property is currently zoned BB (Big Beaver) District.  The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979 A Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\SP-979A PC Memo 11 12 13.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A) – Proposed Galleria of Troy 
Phase II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned 
BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-11- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the Proposed Galleria of Troy Phase 
II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB 
(Big Beaver) District, be granted, subject to the following: 
 

1. Install a pedestrian crossing connection from the sidewalk that runs in front of the 
Hampton Inn to the Pedestrian Spine both north and south of the hotel’s drop-off 
area.   

2. Confirm that all building lights are fully shielded. 
  
 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979 A Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\Proposed Resolution SP 979A 11 12 2013.doc 



GALLERIA OF TROY PHASE II

1: 1,892

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1580315 315Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

8/22/2013

Legend:



GALLERIA OF TROY PHASE II

1: 2,523

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2100420 420Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

8/22/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 
 
       
  September 4, 2013 

November 5, 2013 
 

Preliminary Site Plan Review  
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Group 10 Management 
 
Project Name: Galleria of Troy – Phase II 
 
Plan Date: August 21, 2013 
 
Location:  Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Wilshire  
 
Zoning: BB, Big Beaver Form-Based District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval  
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for Phase II of a proposed commercial 
development at the lot located at the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Wilshire/Troy Plaza Drive.   
Phase I included two restaurants (Carrabbas Italian Grill and Bonefish Grill), and a retail building.  
 
Phase II of the development is located behind Phase I and adjacent to Wilshire Drive.  The applicant is 
proposing a 122-room, 4-story Hampton Inn and a 114-room, 5-story Hilton Garden Inn.  The Hampton 
Inn is set adjacent to Wilshire and the Hampton Garden Inn is set back into the site adjacent to I-75.    
 
The property is zoned Big Beaver Form-Based District.  The proposed development and mix of uses are 
by-right and only require Site Plan Review approval from the Planning Commission.   
 



Galleria of Troy 
November 5, 2013 

2 

 
Size of Subject Property:  
The property is 3.488 acres for Phase II.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Wilshire Drive 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Two Hotels  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Vacant 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned Big Beaver Form Based Code 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PHASE I 

PHASE II 



Galleria of Troy 
November 5, 2013 

3 

 
 
 
Direction Zoning Use 
North  BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial  
South BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial  
East I-75 I-75 
West BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial 
 
PRIOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
This site plan was last reviewed by the Planning Commission at their September 10, 2013 meeting.  
Please review our September 4, 2013 memo for a detailed site plan review.  At the September 10, 2013 
meeting, the application was continued so that the applicant was able to address the following items:  
 
1.  Setback along Wilshire Drive: 
 
Table 5.03.B.4 establishes the dimensional requirements for the building form D: 
 

  
Required / 
Allowed  

Provided 
Compliance 

Front (Wilshire Drive) 10 foot build-to-line. 
75% of the building 
façade must meet the 
required building line, 
while up to 25% of the 
façade can be set back 
to allow for 
architectural 
consideration. 
 
 

Minimum: 10 feet 
 

The Planning Commission 
may adjust the required 
building line to a 
maximum of 30-feet 
beyond the property line 
for projects incorporating 
a permanent space for an 
outdoor café, public 
space, or a cross access 
drive with an adjacent 
parcel.  The applicant has 
added a patio/pool area 
with a canopy to meet the 
build-to-line requirement.  
Over 75% of the building 
meets the required 
building line.   
 
 

Rear 40 foot minimum + 40 feet Complies 

Side  0 foot 12 feet Complies 

Open Space 15 percent 29.3% (Phase II) Complies 

Phase 1: Commercial  



Galleria of Troy 
November 5, 2013 

4 

 
The Planning Commission may adjust the required build-to-line to a maximum of 30-feet beyond the 
front property line for projects incorporating a permanent space for an outdoor café and public space.  
The applicant has included a patio/pool space with a canopy to meet the build-to-line requirements.  
Over 75% of the building fronting on Wilshire meets the build-to-line requirement.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None  
 
2.  Site Arrangement 
 
The applicant has oriented both hotels parallel to Wilshire Drive and I-75.  The Hampton Inn is set 
adjacent to Wilshire and the Hampton Garden Inn is set back into the site adjacent to I-75.   There was a 
list of items in the September 4th memo.  The applicant has indicated that they have considered our 
other site arrangement recommendations; however due to site constraints and corporate requirements 
they are not able to accommodate all of our recommendations.  Overall we find that the applicant has 
addressed most of our recommendations, including moving the Hampton Inn closer to Wilshire Drive 
and greater pedestrian connections.   Since the last submittal the applicant has provided a better overall 
site connection between Phase I and Phase II and has provided greater pedestrian amenities internal to 
the site.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None  
 
3.  Access and Circulation  
 
Vehicular  
 
Primary site access will be shared with the Phase I access on Wilshire Drive.  Secondary access has been 
moved to a second access point on Wilshire Drive.  The Engineering Department has reviewed the 
access drive and has no objections.    
 
Pedestrian   
 
Internally the applicant has continued the “Pedestrian Spine” from Phase I through Phase II.  The spine 
has been improved with pedestrian amenities including landscaping, lighting, and benches.      The 
applicant should install a pedestrian crossing connection from the sidewalk that runs in front of the 
Hampton Inn to the Pedestrian Spine both north and south of the hotel’s drop-off area.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Install a pedestrian crossing connection from the sidewalk that runs in front of 
the Hampton Inn to the Pedestrian Spine both north and south of the hotel’s drop-off area.   
 
 

Lot Coverage by 
Buildings 

30 percent 27 % (Phase II) Complies  

Building Height Minimum: 35 feet 
Maximum: 66 feet 

Hampton: 51 feet 
Hilton: 60 feet 

Complies 

Parking 
Wilshire Drive: Not 
located in front yard 
and screened 

Parking is not 
located in front 
yard 

Complies  



Galleria of Troy 
November 5, 2013 

5 

4. Parking 
 
Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires:  
 
 Required Provided 
Hotel: 
One (1) space for each room, 
plus one (1) space per one (1) 
employee on the largest typical 
shift 
 

236 Rooms + 18 total employees = 
254 spaces 
 
 
 
 

254 spaces  

Any additional spaces required 
for dining establishments 

0 

Total 254 spaces 

   
Barrier Free 7 9 
Bicycle Parking 4 4 
Loading 0 0 
Total 254 automobile + 2 bicycle 254 spaces + 4 bicycle 
 
The applicant has confirmed that the hotels do not include restaurants or other uses that would draw 
non-hotel patrons.  Parking is sufficient.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 
5.  Floor Plans and Elevations 
 
The applicant has revised their elevations from the earlier submittal.  The applicant has provided a color 
rendering of both hotels to articulate the design vision.  The use of masonry and other design elements 
are consistent design pattern for both hotel buildings as well as Phase I buildings.   Lastly, the Hampton 
Inn Wilshire Drive elevations meet the ground story activation requirements.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
6.  Trash Enclosure 
 
The applicant has better screened the trash enclosure for the Hampton Inn with a solid masonry wall 
and the integration of the patio/pool canopy.   The trash enclosure for the Hilton Garden Inn is located 
adjacent the south side of the building.  Due to the floor plan layout, the applicant was not able to move 
the location of the trash enclosure.  The trash enclosure for the Hilton Garden Inn is screened with a 
masonry wall, steel gate, and slates.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
 
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
November 5, 2013 

6 

7.  Lighting 
 
The proposed site lighting consists of twenty-four (24) pole mounted lights.  Both the Hampton Inn and   
Hilton Garden Inn include building and canopy lights.   In addition the site includes twenty-one ground 
lights that illuminate pedestrian areas.  The photometrics comply with ordinance requirements.    
 
Items to be Addressed: Confirm that all building lights are fully shielded.     
 
DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
The Big Beaver design standards provide the Planning Commission with direction when reviewing the 
proposed design features of this development.  
 
Façade Variation.  
 
The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets and/or parks shall 
be thirty (30) feet.  Through the use of material changes, projections, façade articulation and 
fenestration, the all buildings comply with this standard.    
 

a. Primary Entrance:  The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located in the front façade parallel to the street.  An entrance for the Hampton Inn fronts on 
Wilshire Drive.   

Pedestrian Access / Entrance. 

 
b. Pedestrian Connection. The pedestrian connection shall be fully paved and maintained surface 

not less than five (5) feet in width.  Provided the applicant addresses the pedestrian 
connections noted above, this requirement is met.  

 
c. Additional Entrances. In addition to the primary façade facing front façade and/or the right-of-

way, if a parking area is located in the rear or side yard, must also have a direct pedestrian 
access to the parking area that is of a level of materials quality and design emphasis at least 
equal to that of the primary entrance.   Both hotels have entrances that front on the shared 
parking area.   

 

 
Ground Story Activation. 

The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent windows 
and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or parking area 
shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are permitted up to 80% of the 
50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of buildings.  The minimum 
transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut an open space, including a side 
yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall not apply to sides which abut an alley.   
 
The Hampton Inn’s Wilshire elevation meets the ground story activation requirement.      
 
 
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
November 5, 2013 

7 

Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low- or moderate-density 
residential areas.  These features assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses.  
Transitional features are intended to be used in combination with landscape buffers or large 
setbacks. 

 
Due to proximity of other commercial uses, the commercial development is not a more intense 
use which would require transitional features.   

 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in Article 13, Site Design Standards.   The applicant is providing the required parking.    
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building line) but  fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.   Not Applicable  
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear 
feet along the required building lines or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall 
be occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to 
the intersection. The requirement is met   

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty-five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty-five 
(125) feet, whichever is less. Not Applicable  

 
IV. Where off-street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance with 

the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.  The applicant has screened their parking lot 
in compliance with section 13.0.2.C.   

  
Items to be Addressed: None    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
November 5, 2013 

8 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
We support the development of this site.  We recommend preliminary site plan contingent upon the 
applicant addressing the following items as part of the final site plan:  
 

1. Install a pedestrian crossing connection from the sidewalk that runs in front of the Hampton Inn 
to the Pedestrian Spine both north and south of the hotel’s drop-off area.   

2. Confirm that all building lights are fully shielded. 
  

 
 



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

COVER

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

SCALE: NONE





AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-1.0

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

SCALE: 1" = 40'



Retail "A"

AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-2.0

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 50'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-3.1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
S

O
U

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-3.2

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
N

O
R

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-4.1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
S

O
U

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-4.2

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
N

O
R

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-5.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 40'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

1
0
/
1
4
/
1
3

J
P

B
R

e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
e
r
 
C

i
t
y
 
C

o
m

m
e
n
t
s

1
P

B

P-6.1

N
O

T
E

S
 
A

N
D

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

SCALE: NONE









 Designer

 Date

 Scale

 Drawing No.

 LBB/JAB

 OCT 15 2013

 AS NOTED

 #13-17201-V3

1 of 1

 T
H

E
 G

A
L
L
E

R
IA

 O
F

 T
R

O
Y

 -
 T

R
O

Y
, 
M

I
 P

H
A

S
E

 I
I 

- 
S

IT
E

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 V
A

L
U

E
S

 A
T

 G
R

A
D

E

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
: 

 B
O

W
E

R
 +

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S

 G
A

S
S

E
R

 B
U

S
H

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.2

1.2

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.7

2.1

2.0

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

2.7

1.7

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.0

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

1.2

1.9

1.5

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.4

2.4

3.2

1.6

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.3

1.9

1.2

0.7

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.0

1.4

2.6

1.6

0.9

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.4

1.9

1.1

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.1

1.8

1.1

0.7

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.3

2.3

1.6

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.3

2.3

1.3

1.0

0.9

0.6

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

1.0

1.9

1.8

1.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.4

2.0

2.5

2.0

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

1.2

2.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.0

1.7

2.7

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.4

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.9

1.5

2.4

2.6

1.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.8

1.4

2.2

3.2

2.3

2.1

0.8

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.1

1.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

1.6

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.2

1.7

4.3

4.2

4.4

3.7

3.9

2.5

1.7

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.1

4.4

4.0

2.8

1.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.2

2.4

2.4

2.5

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

1.4

2.2

1.5

1.9

0.9

0.1

0.5

0.9

1.5

1.2

1.3

0.7

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

1.8

1.3

0.7

0.9

1.1

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.5

1.1

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.7

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

0.9

1.6

1.1

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.8

1.4

1.9

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.8

0.3

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

1.2

2.5

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.5

0.2

0.1

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.5

1.2

3.7

0.8

0.5

0.4

1.7

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.8

1.2

0.8

1.3

1.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

1.1

1.7

1.7

5.9

8.6

7.9

4.9

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

1.6

2.6

1.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

1.6

9.8

17.8

13.5

0.4

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.0

1.8

2.7

0.7

0.7

1.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.8

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.3

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.0

1.8

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.9

1.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.8

1.5

2.2

1.5

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.4

0.5

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.8

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

4.6

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

0.7

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.2

3.5

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

1.0

1.9

1.0

0.8

0.4

0.1

1.1

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.1

1.0

0.8

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.0

0.6

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.0

1.5

0.9

0.6

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.7

2.0

1.4

0.9

0.8

1.8

2.0

2.2

2.1

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.5

2.4

3.4

3.8

3.8

1.7

1.2

1.1

0.9

0.9

1.2

1.5

1.8

2.6

2.6

2.8

2.2

2.6

3.2

3.0

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.4

2.3

3.7

3.7

3.0

0.2

0.3

0.5

1.1

1.7

2.2

0.2

0.5

1.1

0.9

1.1

1.4

2.0

2.7

8.6

2.3

2.1

1.8

1.7

1.8

2.7

7.3

5.1

4.4

4.4

6.7

0.3

0.1

0.7

2.0

1.0

0.9

0.9

1.3

0.7

0.8

1.1

1.3

6.7

8.0

6.9

0.3

0.1

0.5

1.0

1.3

0.9

0.8

1.1

0.9

0.5

0.7

0.9

7.4

7.1

0.3

0.1

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.3

0.5

0.8

7.1

6.3

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.8

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.2

0.5

0.9

5.0

4.3

0.3

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.5

0.4

0.8

5.0

4.1

0.3

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.8

4.9

4.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

5.0

4.7

3.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

7.0

7.7

6.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

5.0

7.7

7.5

0.3

0.1

0.2

0.4

6.5

9.1

7.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

1.2

1.8

2.7

7.5

7.4

6.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

5.4

4.8

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

4.2

4.4

2.7

2.8

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

5.5

4.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.1

0.7

1.3

2.0

2.5

6.9

5.3

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

7.4

9.7

6.8

0.6

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

4.8

7.8

7.3

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

5.8

9.2

7.2

4.0

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.6

6.5

5.5

1.4

1.0

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.7

4.2

3.9

1.6

1.0

0.5

0.2

0.1

2.1

0.7

5.0

4.1

3.8

2.8

1.8

1.1

0.6

0.3

0.3

0.7

5.1

4.5

3.5

4.7

4.9

2.7

1.7

1.3

0.9

0.3

0.6

7.3

6.0

5.3

2.9

4.4

6.5

5.2

2.9

2.3

0.4

0.4

9.2

7.3

7.1

3.7

4.5

5.7

8.3

4.5

0.2

0.4

8.0

7.3

7.2

5.8

6.6

9.7

6.5

6.4

0.2

0.4

8.7

6.4

6.5

4.9

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.5

0.2

0.5

5.0

4.6

4.8

6.6

6.6

5.3

4.3

4.1

4.7

0.3

0.5

4.8

4.3

4.3

5.2

5.2

4.9

4.5

4.3

3.6

0.4

0.6

2.8

4.9

4.7

5.5

5.3

3.5

3.3

3.4

0.5

0.9

0.7

2.8

4.0

6.2

6.5

5.0

3.3

3.1

0.7

1.1

1.6

2.0

3.4

5.0

7.4

7.2

5.0

1.0

1.7

2.6

3.3

6.0

5.5

6.3

6.9

6.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.3

3.6

4.2

4.8

5.5

6.6

8.4

6.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

1.7

0.7

4.1

3.4

3.9

5.0

5.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

4.3

4.5

3.3

3.3

3.5

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.2

4.3

5.7

4.3

3.3

3.4

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.7

1.0

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.5

3.8

9.0

6.1

4.2

0.1

0.3

0.5

1.0

1.7

2.3

2.8

3.5

5.3

4.9

5.7

7.2

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.2

2.1

2.9

4.3

5.4

6.7

7.7

6.3

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.1

1.7

2.2

2.8

3.9

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.2

1.5

0.1

0.3

0.9

1.5

0.9

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.6

3.4

1.1

1.0

1.4

1.2

1.8

2.0

3.2

5.0

4.4

2.2

1.6

2.3

2.3

2.6

2.5

3.0

3.9

8.2

5.7

3.9

2.5

2.1

4.4

5.2

8.0

5.3

6.0

8.4

4.7

4.3

2.9

2.1

2.0

2.5

3.9

5.4

7.0

6.4

6.6

6.5

7.0

5.6

4.2

3.0

2.7

1.9

2.8

4.3

4.8

8.4

6.2

5.7

8.4

5.7

5.2

4.3

3.9

2.2

2.7

4.2

6.0

8.5

4.5

3.8

3.3

3.6

3.6

4.4

4.4

3.2

1.8

2.7

5.0

5.6

4.0

2.7

3.0

2.4

3.4

3.8

4.8

4.3

3.0

3.7

4.6

4.0

3.5

3.1

2.8

3.0

3.8

5.5

5.5

3.7

2.3

3.7

4.5

4.5

4.1

4.0

3.9

4.4

5.4

7.5

5.6

3.2

2.6

2.2

3.0

3.9

4.7

5.6

6.7

7.6

6.4

6.6

6.8

4.7

3.6

2.7

2.1

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.9

0.8

0.6

2.5

3.0

4.3

5.2

7.1

6.5

6.5

8.4

6.6

5.4

4.1

3.1

1.8

1.7

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.2

1.8

2.5

3.3

4.9

7.1

6.1

5.3

4.4

5.8

4.9

4.3

3.6

3.1

2.3

2.4

2.0

1.9

2.3

2.7

2.1

3.1

5.2

6.5

4.6

3.3

2.8

2.6

2.9

2.9

3.2

3.4

2.5

2.7

2.4

2.4

3.0

3.6

2.1

3.5

4.8

4.0

2.6

2.1

2.3

1.8

2.1

2.4

3.5

3.7

2.9

2.6

2.9

2.8

2.2

2.8

3.2

2.5

3.4

3.6

2.5

2.2

1.7

2.1

1.9

2.6

3.6

4.4

3.7

2.7

2.6

1.9

2.0

2.0

3.1

2.9

2.4

2.4

2.5

2.5

2.8

4.4

5.6

5.2

2.3

2.3

1.6

1.4

1.2

2.8

3.4

3.8

3.9

4.4

3.8

4.6

6.3

6.8

5.1

3.1

2.7

2.3

2.0

1.9

1.2

0.9

0.7

0.6

2.4

3.2

4.5

5.6

6.6

6.8

6.5

6.5

6.0

4.8

3.5

2.5

2.2

1.9

1.6

1.0

0.7

2.1

2.9

4.2

4.7

6.7

6.4

6.4

8.8

6.7

5.1

4.5

1.7

2.5

3.3

5.0

8.1

5.6

4.7

4.0

5.0

3.3

5.5

6.3

3.6

2.6

3.7

4.5

3.4

2.3

1.6

1.6

2.5

3.0

2.9

1.8

1.4

1.1

1.3

1.9

2.3

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.7

1.2

1.3

1.6

1.6

1.6

2.0

2.4

2.1

2.5

2.2

3.2

2.7

2.9

2.7

1.7

0.5

4.0

3.5

3.1

3.1

3.1

1.6

1.5

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.4

3.5

3.2

3.3

3.0

2.9

2.7

2.1

1.9

2.0

3.3

4.0

4.3

2.1

2.7

3.8

5.0

5.0

4.6

3.7

3.8

5.9

5.6

5.3

1.8

2.1

2.7

3.2

4.8

6.6

9.0

5.8

5.8

9.8

6.1

4.4

1.8

1.2

2.8

2.9

3.8

3.8

4.0

3.9

4.3

4.8

6.7

6.3

6.4

6.5

4.9

3.6

2.7

2.4

1.5

2.7

4.3

4.6

4.4

3.9

3.5

3.7

4.8

6.3

8.9

6.1

6.2

8.9

5.9

3.9

2.4

1.8

2.7

3.5

3.0

2.7

2.1

2.3

2.6

3.1

4.1

5.4

5.7

5.6

4.2

4.1

6.6

5.4

4.8

3.1

1.0

2.4

3.7

5.6

2.2

1.5

1.2

1.5

1.9

3.0

3.5

3.6

3.1

2.4

2.2

2.2

2.4

3.2

3.6

3.1

2.5

1.5

1.3

3.4

4.1

1.8

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.8

2.5

2.6

2.2

1.8

1.6

1.8

1.6

1.7

1.7

2.3

2.5

2.2

1.5

2.8

2.5

1.4

1.0

1.0

1.3

1.4

1.8

2.3

2.4

1.9

1.6

1.3

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.5

1.9

2.3

2.1

1.5

1.9

2.3

1.8

1.3

1.0

1.0

1.3

1.5

1.9

2.7

3.0

2.6

2.3

2.0

1.9

1.8

2.1

2.2

2.7

2.9

2.3

1.5

1.5

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.0

3.0

3.7

4.4

3.8

3.2

2.8

2.8

3.4

4.2

4.2

3.4

2.6

1.5

2.0

2.4

2.4

2.1

2.2

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.3

3.2

5.1

6.2

8.0

5.1

5.2

8.6

5.6

4.7

2.7

2.0

1.4

3.3

3.3

3.2

2.6

3.0

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.8

3.9

5.0

8.4

6.5

6.6

8.1

5.3

3.7

2.8

3.4

2.8

2.2

1.9

1.9

2.3

2.9

3.8

5.0

8.4

6.5

6.7

8.3

5.7

4.3

3.3

2.4

2.9

2.2

2.0

2.3

2.1

2.2

2.7

3.3

5.0

6.2

8.0

5.2

5.4

9.1

6.7

6.4

4.5

3.3

2.7

1.8

1.7

1.3

1.8

2.0

2.6

2.8

3.0

3.0

3.0

2.3

2.6

3.2

3.4

2.7

1.9

1.4

1.2

1.3

1.6

2.6

3.4

3.8

4.4

3.8

3.1

2.8

3.1

4.1

5.5

6.6

6.5

5.8

4.1

2.9

2.6

2.3

2.8

3.8

4.1

3.5

3.0

2.8

2.9

2.2

2.1

2.3

2.2

1.3

2.6

2.5

3.1

1.3

1.1

3.3

4.3

6.0

6.9

5.7

4.6

2.9

2.6

2.6

2.4

1.7

1.5

1.5

1.2

1.2

2.2

2.0

1.5

2.1

2.9

4.0

5.7

6.7

7.3

5.5

3.4

2.5

2.2

2.0

1.8

1.2

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.9

0.9

1.2

2.0

2.8

3.6

5.0

5.5

6.6

6.0

5.0

3.3

2.8

2.5

2.1

1.6

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.7

1.2

1.8

2.4

3.7

5.6

7.1

5.9

7.7

5.7

4.2

2.8

2.5

2.2

1.8

1.2

1.1

0.9

0.7

1.5

2.3

3.5

4.7

5.5

5.1

4.0

5.0

5.5

5.1

4.1

3.4

2.8

2.4

1.5

1.2

1.1

0.8

1.5

2.6

3.9

4.2

3.6

4.1

3.0

3.3

3.4

4.5

4.6

3.9

3.3

2.9

2.0

1.8

1.7

1.4

1.5

2.6

3.9

4.2

3.6

4.2

2.9

3.2

3.5

4.5

4.6

3.9

3.4

3.3

2.4

2.4

2.7

2.5

1.4

2.2

3.3

4.5

5.5

5.3

4.0

5.5

5.7

5.2

4.0

3.5

3.4

3.4

2.6

2.8

3.4

1.0

1.6

2.2

3.3

5.2

6.1

8.3

5.8

4.2

2.9

2.7

2.9

3.1

2.3

2.6

3.0

2.7

0.8

1.6

2.4

3.1

4.4

6.8

6.1

5.1

3.5

3.0

2.8

2.6

2.7

2.0

1.9

1.9

1.7

0.9

1.3

2.1

3.0

4.7

7.0

8.0

5.7

3.6

2.7

2.4

2.3

2.2

1.5

1.3

1.2

0.9

4.4

5.6

5.0

6.9

5.9

5.0

3.3

2.7

2.3

1.8

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.7

4.5

4.2

4.3

3.4

3.1

4.0

4.6

4.0

3.3

2.5

1.8

1.2

0.9

0.7

0.6

3.6

3.0

3.3

2.6

3.6

3.9

3.4

2.5

1.9

1.2

0.9

0.8

0.6

4.0

3.6

4.2

3.0

2.9

3.3

4.1

4.1

3.4

2.6

2.1

1.4

1.0

0.9

0.8

4.6

5.4

5.7

4.4

5.3

5.4

5.1

3.9

3.2

2.8

2.6

1.8

1.4

1.3

1.1

0.8

1.3

2.1

3.1

5.0

6.2

9.5

5.8

4.4

2.9

2.6

2.6

2.8

2.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

1.5

2.3

3.0

4.1

6.8

6.6

5.0

3.6

3.0

2.8

2.7

3.0

2.5

2.6

3.1

3.5

1.3

2.0

2.9

4.4

6.8

8.5

5.9

3.9

2.8

2.5

2.7

3.1

2.7

2.8

3.5

1.1

1.8

2.6

3.9

5.4

6.5

4.9

7.8

6.0

5.3

3.7

3.1

3.0

3.2

2.7

2.5

2.9

3.5

1.6

1.3

2.3

3.6

4.2

4.3

4.1

3.3

3.2

4.2

4.8

4.4

3.9

3.3

3.1

2.4

2.1

2.3

2.8

2.5

2.3

1.3

2.3

3.7

4.1

3.5

3.8

2.9

3.3

3.2

4.2

4.6

4.0

3.1

2.8

2.1

1.8

2.3

3.0

1.3

2.2

3.6

4.3

4.5

4.7

3.4

4.5

5.0

4.6

3.9

3.0

2.5

2.2

2.1

2.8

1.1

1.7

2.5

3.7

5.4

6.9

8.4

6.3

5.8

4.1

3.4

3.0

2.9

2.6

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.8

4.3

5.6

8.7

6.4

4.8

4.1

3.8

3.8

3.5

0.7

1.4

2.1

2.9

4.0

4.7

7.6

6.1

5.1

5.1

5.5

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.9

4.9

6.9

10.4

7.2

6.2

5.1

1.0

1.6

2.7

3.8

4.9

4.7

7.1

1.0

1.6

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.8

0.9

1.4

1.9

2.0

2.2

1.1

1.4

1.6

1.9

1.9

2.1

2.8

2.6

4.0

4.7

2.3

1.0

1.7

3.2

4.1

1.0

1.8

2.9

1.7

2.2

1.9

19.9

20.2

20.2

34.7

38.0

36.5

32.2

40.0

39.4

36.3

27.8

31.7

29.6

26.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

1.4

16.6

19.3

30.1

40.5

2.4

3.4

3.6

24.6

28.5

29.1

2.1

19.1

21.1

20.1

3.4

27.7

29.6

2.3

2.8

3.3

B-I

B-I

B-I

B-I

B-I

B-I

B

B
B

B

B
BB

B
B

B

B
BB

B

B

B

B

B B

B

B

A

AAAA
A

A

A

A

A A

A A A A A A

A

B-I

B-I

B-I

K-II K-II K-II K-II K-II

B-IIB-IIB-IIB-II

E-II E-II
E-II

B-II B-II

B-II

B-II

B-II

E-II

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E E

E

E

E

E

E-II

H-II

J-II

E

E

E

C C

C C

C C

H HHH

HH

HH

H

H

HH

F F

F

F

F
F

F

F

F
FF

F

F

F F

G

G

G G G

PHASE II - SITE LIGHTING VALUES AT GRADE
Scale  1" = 30'

LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS

No. Label X Y MH

Location

1 B-I 256.4 198.7 25.0

2 B-I 336.5 250.6 25.0

3 B-I 409.9 139.1 25.0

4 B-I 329.8 86.0 25.0

5 B-I 392.4 -7.1 25.0

6 B-I 478.1 35.5 25.0

7 B-II 249.5 92.5 25.0

8 B-II 174.4 92.5 25.0

9 B-II 94.4 91.2 25.0

10 B-II 19.5 90.6 25.0

11 E-II -22.3 211.7 25.0

12 E-II 73.9 211.5 25.0

13 E-II 179.5 213.8 25.0

14 B-II -126.8 3.4 25.0

15 B-II -32.6 3.5 25.0

16 B-II -437.5 29.4 25.0

17 B-II -370.5 55.0 25.0

18 B-II -291.4 83.3 25.0

19 E-II -346.6 196.0 25.0

20 E -160.3 77.8 10.0

21 E -160.4 69.8 10.0

22 E -160.2 61.8 10.0

23 E -160.3 53.7 10.0

24 E -152.3 77.8 10.0

25 E -152.3 69.8 10.0

26 E -152.1 61.8 10.0

27 E -152.2 53.7 10.0

28 E 140.5 17.0 10.0

29 E 140.1 25.2 10.0

30 E 139.8 33.0 10.0

31 E 8.6 -41.2 9.0

32 E 334.1 -27.8 9.0

33 E -198.3 208.9 8.0

34 E -122.4 209.1 8.0

35 E -72.4 198.9 8.0

36 E -72.4 192.9 8.0

37 E -72.4 186.9 8.0

38 E -277.8 177.0 9.0

39 E-II -181.7 13.4 25.0

40 H-II -121.6 -106.7 25.0

41 J-II -26.5 -118.5 25.0

42 E 128.6 16.5 10.0

43 E 128.1 24.6 10.0

LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS

No. Label X Y MH

Location

44 E 127.7 32.5 10.0

45 H -155.1 215.3 0.5

46 H -95.5 216.1 0.5

47 H -226.4 215.2 0.5

48 H -250.0 215.0 0.5

49 H -30.9 97.2 0.5

50 B -116.4 114.0 0.3

51 B -97.0 120.4 0.3

52 B -87.7 116.1 0.3

53 B -79.2 110.3 0.3

54 B -75.7 102.5 0.3

55 B -94.2 98.6 0.3

56 B -109.8 98.5 0.3

57 H -114.7 95.8 0.5

58 H -132.7 88.2 0.5

59 H -180.5 87.9 0.5

60 H -197.9 95.5 0.5

61 H -207.6 119.6 0.5

62 H -214.9 132.4 0.5

63 H -274.4 131.0 0.5

64 B -206.5 125.1 0.3

65 B -217.4 128.8 0.3

66 B -223.7 132.0 0.3

67 B -224.4 113.1 0.3

68 B -236.6 109.2 0.3

69 B -255.5 109.8 0.3

70 B -268.4 133.9 0.3

71 B -267.7 112.3 0.3

72 B 29.9 -79.5 0.3

73 B 37.2 -101.3 0.3

74 B 56.5 -115.8 0.3

75 B 83.6 -115.6 0.3

76 B 104.8 -99.8 0.3

77 B 110.8 -76.4 0.3

78 A 342.6 -44.2 0.5

79 A 304.1 -63.2 0.5

80 A 281.2 -64.2 0.5

81 A 242.3 -65.4 0.5

82 A 215.6 -66.7 0.5

83 A 159.3 -71.3 0.5

84 A 117.4 -74.0 0.5

85 A 2.2 -58.7 0.5

86 A 1.8 -27.3 0.5

LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS

No. Label X Y MH

Location

87 A 27.7 -10.4 0.5

88 A 50.7 -8.9 0.5

89 A 113.9 0.5 0.5

90 A 156.3 1.9 0.5

91 A 212.5 1.4 0.5

92 A 239.4 2.4 0.5

93 A 278.5 0.3 0.5

94 A 301.5 1.0 0.5

95 A 341.2 -13.2 0.5

96 C 117.5 43.2 7.0

97 C 149.8 44.3 7.0

98 C 126.9 5.2 7.0

99 C 143.5 5.8 7.0

100 F -163.5 79.0 7.0

101 F -149.2 79.0 7.0

102 F -109.3 122.4 7.0

103 F -73.5 100.3 7.0

104 F -30.5 153.3 7.0

105 F -30.5 150.8 7.0

106 F -30.3 123.8 7.0

107 F -202.0 131.7 7.0

108 F -231.7 123.7 7.0

109 F -239.2 120.6 7.0

110 F -248.9 120.5 7.0

111 F -256.6 123.9 7.0

112 F -257.5 130.5 7.0

113 G -280.4 184.0 9.0

114 G -280.4 154.9 9.0

115 G -183.3 211.0 9.0

116 G -137.9 211.2 9.0

117 G -93.7 209.8 9.0

118 F -163.4 50.0 7.0

119 F -149.0 50.1 7.0

120 B-I 429.3 311.7 25.0

121 B-I 502.5 200.0 25.0

122 B-I 570.1 96.7 25.0

123 C 129.2 -78.9 7.0

124 C 147.8 -78.1 7.0

125 K-II 56.1 79.6 12.0

126 K-II 117.5 79.6 12.0

127 K-II 148.3 79.6 12.0

128 K-II 215.7 79.6 12.0

129 K-II 289.9 79.6 12.0

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

Symbol Label Qty File Lumens LLF WattsCatalog Number Description Lamp

B-I 9 KSF2_400M_R
3.ies

38000 0.72 912

B-II 9 KSF2_400M_R
3.ies

38000 0.72 912

E-II 5 KSF2_400M_R
4SC.ies

38000 0.72 456

H-II 1 KSF2_400M_R
3_HS.ies

38000 0.72 456

A 18 Ltl14918P.ies 11700 0.75 209

B 21 84053116.IES 2000 0.90 150

C 6 OW1044-
2QF13.IES

900 0.75 26

E 22 EVO_35_29_8
AR_LS_120.ie

s

Absolute 0.80 48.6

F 15 MAS813-PAN-
OL-WS-1-

14L40K-SCC-
120.ies

54 0.90 27

G 5 MRW_LED_1_
10A700_40K_
SR2_MVOLT.i

es

Absolute 0.92 24.1

H 12 Ltl14918P.ies 11700 0.75 209

J-II 1 KSF2_400M_R
4W.ies

38000 0.72 456

K-II 5 Ltl10240H.ies 5000 0.72 110

LITHONIA #KSF2
400M R3 (TWIN -
25' MTD HTG)
(PHASE 1 WORK)
(OPTICS
ROTATED 90
DEGREES)

Specification Area
Luminaire, 400W Metal
Halide, R3 Reflector, Full
Cutoff MEETS THE
'NIGHTTIME FRIENDLY'
CRITERIA

TWO 400 WATT CLEAR
ED28 PULSE START
METAL HALIDE IN
HORIZONTAL POSITION

LITHONIA #KSF2
400M R3 (TWIN -
25' MTD HTG)
(OPTICS
ROTATED 90
DEGREES)

Specification Area
Luminaire, 400W Metal
Halide, R3 Reflector, Full
Cutoff MEETS THE
'NIGHTTIME FRIENDLY'
CRITERIA

TWO 400 WATT CLEAR
ED28 PULSE START
METAL HALIDE IN
HORIZONTAL POSITION

LITHONIA #KSF2
400M R4SC
(SINGLE - 25' MTD
HTG) (PHASE II)

Specification Area
Luminaire, 400W Metal
Halide, R4SC Sharp Cutoff
Reflector, Full Cutoff
MEETS THE 'NIGHTTIME
FRIENDLY' CRITERIA

ONE 400 WATT CLEAR
ED28 PULSE START
METAL HALIDE IN
HORIZONTAL POSITION

LITHONIA #KSF2
400M R3 HS
(SINGLE - 25' MTD
HTG) (PHASE II)

Specification Area
Luminaire, 400W Metal
Halide, R3 Reflector with
houseside shield, Full
Cutoff MEETS THE
'NIGHTTIME FRIENDLY'
CRITERIA

ONE 400 WATT CLEAR
ED28 PULSE START
METAL HALIDE IN
HORIZONTAL POSITION

LITHONIA - AERIS
SERIES #ASF1
150M VFN

AERIS FLOOD
LUMINAIRE, 150-WATT
METAL HALIDE,
NARROW FLOOD

ONE 150-WATT CLEAR
ED17 METAL HALIDE,
HORIZONTAL POSITION

HYDREL IN-
GRADE
LUMINAIRE

IN-GRADE LUMINAIRE
ONE 150-WATT PAR-38
FLOOD INCANDESCENT,
VERTICAL BASE-UP
POSITION.

VISA - HAMPTON
SERIES #OW1044

FORMED WHITE
ACRYLIC DIFFUSER
ENCLOSED IN FORMED
FRAMEWORK, DIFFUSE
WHITE PAINTED
INERIOR BACK PANEL.

TWO 13-WATT
COMPACT
FLUORESCENT, EACH
RATED 900 LUMENS

GOTHAM #EVO
35/29 8AR LS 120

8" LED DOWNLIGHT,
3500K, 2900 LUMENS,
STANDARD
DISTRIBUTION WITH
CLEAR SPECULAR
REFLECTOR

LED

KENALL -
MILLENIUM WALL
SCONCE SERIES

18.5" WALL SCONCE
WITH WHITE OPAL
CURVED LENS

LED

LITHONIA #MRW
LED 1 10A700/40K
SR2 MVOLT

MRW LED WITH 1
MODULE, 10 LED?s,
700mA DRIVER, 4000K
COLOR TEMPERATURE,
TYPE  2 LENS

LED LUMINAIRE WITH
OUTPUT:  1994 Lms.

LITHONIA - AERIS
SERIES #ASF1
150M VFN

AERIS FLOOD
LUMINAIRE, 150-WATT
METAL HALIDE,
NARROW FLOOD

ONE 150-WATT CLEAR
ED17 METAL HALIDE,
HORIZONTAL POSITION

LITHONIA #KSF2
400M R4W
(SINGLE)

Specification Area
Luminaire, 400W Metal
Halide, R4 Wide Reflector,
Full Cutoff MEETS THE
'NIGHTTIME FRIENDLY'
CRITERIA

ONE 400 WATT CLEAR
ED28 PULSE START
METAL HALIDE IN
HORIZONTAL POSITION

EUROTIQUE LTG -
HANOVER
SERIES #EH16
70M MED GCF
SR2

EUROTIQUE
ARCHITECTURAL
LUMINAIRE WITH SR2
REFLECTOR, CLEAR
FLAT GLASS LENS.

ONE 70-WATT CLEAR
ED17 METAL HALIDE,
HORIZONTAL POS.

STATISTICS

Description       Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

HOTEL CANOPY VALUES
AT GRADE

PHASE II - PARKING &
DRIVE AREAS

30.6 fc 40.5 fc 16.6 fc 2.4:1 1.8:1

14.1 fc 30.1 fc 1.4 fc 21.5:1 10.1:1

3.3 fc 10.4 fc 0.5 fc 20.8:1 6.6:1

HOTEL CANOPY VALUES
AT GRADE

NOTES

 1.  SEE MH COLUMN OF LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS FOR MOUNTING HEIGHTS.

 2.  SEE LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE FOR LIGHT LOSS FACTORS.

 3.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT GRADE SURFACE.

 

 THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT 

 TO EXISTING / FUTURE FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS 

 CALCULATED FROM LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

 ILLUMINATING ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S

 LUMINAIRE MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER

 VARIABLE FIELD CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

  

  THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING 

  ANALYSIS OF LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.    THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT

 IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND

 LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE. 

 

  























  PC 2013.11.12 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
DATE: November 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 989) – Proposed Holiday 

 Inn, Northeast corner of Maple Road and Research Drive, Section 26, Currently 
 Zoned GB (General Business) District 

 
 
The petitioner Maple Hospitality LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for a 130-room hotel.   
 
The property is currently zoned GB (General Business) District.  The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 989 Holiday Inn\SP-989 PC Memo 11 12 13.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 989) – Proposed Holiday Inn, 
Northeast corner of Maple Road and Research Drive, Section 26, Currently Zoned GB 
(General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-11- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the Proposed Holiday Inn, Northeast 
corner of Maple Road and Research Drive, Section 26, Currently Zoned GB (General 
Business) District, be granted, subject to the following: 
 

1. Add a bike rack with capacity of at least two bicycles. 
2. Incorporate a pedestrian connection from the front entrance out to Maple Road. 
3. Incorporate a pedestrian connection from the shared parking area to the hotel. 
4. Confirm that the entrance along the northern elevation permits guest access. 
5. Confirm that all light fixtures are shielded or full-cut off. 
6. Add landscape calculations to landscape plan. 
7. Add one deciduous street tree. 
8. Show protective techniques on final landscape plan for those trees identified to be 

preserved.   
 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 989 Holiday Inn\Proposed Resolution SP 989 11 12 2013.doc 



HOLIDAY INN, File Number SP 989

1: 1,296

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1080216 216Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

10/8/2013

Legend:



HOLIDAY INN, File Number SP 989

1: 1,353

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1130226 226Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

10/8/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 
 
 

 Date:  November 4, 2013 
 

Preliminary Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Group 10 Management 
 
Project Name: Holiday Inn 
 
Plan Date: October 30, 2013 
 
Location: Northeast corner of Maple Road and Research Drive.   
 
Zoning: OM, Office Mixed-Use District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting preliminary site plan approval for a 75-foot, 130-room full-service 
Holiday Inn hotel.  Lodging is permitted as a right under the GB – General Business zoning 
regulations.  Site access will be off Research Drive.  There will be no access off Maple Road.   
 
According to the Troy Master Plan, this area is part of the “The Smart Zone.” Much of this area 
is occupied by vacant or underutilized office and industrial facilities that can be readily 
redeveloped into Knowledge Economy uses, or into uses that work in direct support of those 
uses, such as lodging.  
 
 
 
 
 



Holiday Inn  
November 4, 2013 

2 

Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the West side of I-75, north of Maple Road. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 2.50 acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to use the site for a 75-foot, 130-room full-service Holiday Inn hotel.      
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently a vacant lot, formerly a restaurant. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned GM – General Business.  
 

 
 
Direction Zoning Use 
North  RC – Research Center Research  
South OM – Office Mixed Use Office 
East I-75 I-75 
West GB – General Business Hotel 
 

SITE 



Holiday Inn  
November 4, 2013 

3 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

The proposed building is situated at the center of the site, with the main building entry oriented 
south towards Maple Road. The site plan utilizes existing driveways, with the main vehicular 
access off of Research Drive to the west, and a secondary cross access drive from the adjacent 
parking lot to the north of the site. Half of the parking is in front of the building and the 
remaining half is distributed to the side and rear.  The arrangement is efficient and typical for a 
hotel.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Section 4.14.C establishes the dimensional requirements for the GB – General Business district.  
The requirements and the proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
Items to be Addressed: None.  
 

PARKING 
 
Parking Calculations: 
The parking calculations provided are as follows. 
 
 Required Provided 
Hotel: 
One (1) space for each room, 
plus one (1) space per one (1) 
employee on the largest typical 
shift 
 

130 Rooms + 15 total employees = 
145 spaces 
 
 
 
 

116 spaces (on-site) 
129 spaces (shared) 

 Required/Allowed Provided Compliance 
Front  (Maple Road) 10 feet 88 feet Complies 

Front (Research 
Drive) 

10 feet 128 feet  Complies 

Rear 30 feet 48 feet Complies 

Side  20 feet  67 feet  Complies 

Open Space 20%  25% Complies 

Building Height 75 feet 72’-5” Complies 



Holiday Inn  
November 4, 2013 

4 

Restaurant: 
One (1) space per two (2) seats 

200 seats / 2  =  100 spaces  

Total 245 spaces 245 spaces 

   
Barrier Free 6 6 
Bicycle Parking 2 0 
Loading 0  
Total 245 automobile + 2 bicycle 245 automobile  
 
The site plan shows 116 total parking spaces onsite, and 129 shared parking spaces located in 
the adjacent parcel to the north.   Vehicular parking meets ordinance requirements. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Provide two (2) bicycle parking spaces.   
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular access: 
 
The site will be accessed via Research Drive to the west and a cross access drive to the north.  
Vehicular access is sufficient.  
 
Pedestrian access:  
 
There is an existing sidewalk along Maple Road and Research Drive.  Section 4.14.D.3(b) 
requires “a clear, obvious, publicly-accessible connection between the primary street which the 
building fronts and the building.” The site plan lacks any pedestrian connection from the Maple 
Road right-of-way to the canopy and front entrance of the building. This is particularly 
important given the SMART bus stop along Maple Road which serves routes 495 Northbound 
and 780 Westbound. The applicant shall incorporate a pedestrian connection from the shared 
parking area to the hotel.  In addition, the applicant shall confirm that the entrance along the 
northern elevation permits guest access.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Incorporate a pedestrian connection from the front entrance out to 
Maple Road; 2). Incorporate a pedestrian connection from the shared parking area to the hotel; 
and 3). Confirm that the entrance along the northern elevation permits guest access 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site, now vacant, was formerly occupied by a small commercial restaurant building. The 
parking lot improvements remain, as well as the landscaping. The proposed plan would not 
impact any protected natural features.  The plan does, however, call for the removal of 
landscaping along Maple Road. The existing wooded area along I-75 will be trimmed back to a 
manageable state and preserved as a natural landscape buffer.    
  



Holiday Inn  
November 4, 2013 

5 

Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS  
 
The applicant has submitted floor plans and elevations.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
LIGHTING 
 
The applicant has provided a lighting (photometric) plan and lighting fixture details.   The 
applicant proposed twelve (12) pole mounted lights and fifty-nine (59) building and ground 
mounted lights. The light encroachment does not exceed 1 foot-candle at any location.  
Photometrics meet ordinance requirements.  The applicant shall confirm that all light fixtures 
are shielded or full-cut off. 
  
Items to be Addressed: Confirm that all light fixtures are shielded or full-cut off. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The application includes a detailed landscape plan.  The plan does not include the required 
landscape calculations.  A detailed landscape table showing how all requirements of Section 
13.02 are being met should be added.    
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Street Trees: The Ordinance requires 
that the greenbelt shall be landscaped 
with a minimum of one (1) deciduous 
tree for every thirty (30) lineal feet, or 
fraction thereof, of frontage abutting a 
public road right-of-way.   
 
 

Maple Road 
439 LF = 15 trees 
 

15 trees Compliant  
 

Research Drive 
248 LF = 9 trees 

8 trees Add one street 
tree  

I-75 
248 LF = 8 trees 

Existing tree mass 
to remain 

Compliant 

Site landscaping: A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the site area shall be 
comprised of landscape material. 

20% 21% Compliant 

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for 
every 8 parking spaces.  Trees may be 
located adjacent to parking lot with 
planning commission approval.   

116 spaces (on 
site) =  
15 trees  

15 trees Compliant 

 
The Ordinance requires that the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) 
deciduous tree for every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction thereof, of frontage abutting a public 
road right-of-way.  This site has 248 feet of frontage along Research Drive, requiring 8.3 (9) 



Holiday Inn  
November 4, 2013 

6 

trees. An additional deciduous street tree must be added to meet minimum Ordinance 
requirements.  
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Add landscape calculations to landscape plan; 2.) Add one deciduous 
street tree; and 3.) Show protective techniques on final landscape plan for those trees identified 
to be preserved.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We support the proposed project and believe the project does meet or exceed minimum 
requirements, with several small conditions for clarification and compliance with minor 
elements required by the Zoning Ordinance. We recommend the Planning Commission approve 
the preliminary site plan application conditioned on the applicant satisfying the following 
requirements as part of the Final Site Plan review: 
 

1. Add a bike rack with capacity of at least two bicycles. 
2. Incorporate a pedestrian connection from the front entrance out to Maple Road. 
3. Incorporate a pedestrian connection from the shared parking area to the hotel. 
4. Confirm that the entrance along the northern elevation permits guest access. 
5. Confirm that all light fixtures are shielded or full-cut off. 
6. Add landscape calculations to landscape plan. 
7. Add one deciduous street tree. 
8. Show protective techniques on final landscape plan for those trees identified to be 

preserved.   
 

 
 
 



NOV. 1, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2013-115

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

W
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
6
,
 
T

.
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

K
M

K
D

N
.

K
M

K
S

U
R

.
D

C
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

COVER

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

SCALE: NONE





NOV. 1, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2013-115

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

W
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
6
,
 
T

.
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

K
M

K
D

N
.

K
M

K
S

U
R

.
D

C
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-1.1

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

SCALE: 1" = 30'



NOV. 1, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2013-115

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

W
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
6
,
 
T

.
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

K
M

K
D

N
.

K
M

K
S

U
R

.
D

C
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-2.1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 30'



NOV. 1, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2013-115

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

W
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
6
,
 
T

.
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

K
M

K
D

N
.

K
M

K
S

U
R

.
D

C
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-3.1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'



NOV. 1, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2013-115

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

W
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
6
,
 
T

.
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

K
M

K
D

N
.

K
M

K
S

U
R

.
D

C
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-4.1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'



NOV. 1, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2013-115

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

W
 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
6
,
 
T

.
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
1
1
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
 
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

K
M

K
D

N
.

K
M

K
S

U
R

.
D

C
P

.
M

.
J
P

B

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-5.1

N
O

T
E

S
 
A

N
D

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

SCALE: NONE













 Designer

 Date

 Scale

 Drawing No.

 LBB/JAB

 OCT 29 2013

 AS NOTED

 #13-18185-V2

1 of 1

 T
R

O
Y

 H
O

T
E

L
 -

 M
A

P
L
E

 R
O

A
D

 S
IT

E
 L

E
D

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 V
A

L
U

E
S

 A
T

 G
R

A
D

E

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
: 

 B
O

W
E

R
S

 +
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

 G
A

S
S

E
R

 B
U

S
H

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.0

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.8

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.9

0.9

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.4

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.3

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.3

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.5

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.5

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.4

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

2.2

2.9

3.5

3.3

2.7

2.5

2.7

2.7

2.4

3.2

3.1

3.1

2.3

2.2

2.4

2.6

2.9

2.8

1.2

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

2.3

3.3

3.8

4.2

3.5

3.8

2.1

1.2

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

1.0

5.3

6.5

7.3

5.1

1.7

1.3

0.6

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

5.5

5.0

4.4

3.9

1.4

1.8

0.9

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

5.3

4.2

3.7

1.3

2.4

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

7.1

4.7

3.1

3.3

1.0

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

6.8

3.3

2.9

2.3

2.2

3.3

1.0

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

5.3

3.6

3.0

2.2

2.3

2.3

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

5.9

6.3

2.7

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

6.2

6.0

6.0

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

5.9

6.9

2.8

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

5.4

5.1

1.2

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

1.0

5.1

3.6

1.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

2.2

3.1

2.1

2.1

4.4

6.7

4.3

1.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

2.0

3.3

7.3

4.8

1.7

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

7.4

3.3

3.2

1.9

0.8

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

5.0

4.2

1.9

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

4.9

0.9

1.7

3.6

1.2

0.3

6.0

1.8

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

3.2

1.3

1.4

1.7

0.1

3.7

1.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

2.2

1.5

0.9

0.7

0.1

3.2

1.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.9

3.7

1.4

1.3

2.2

0.2

6.1

1.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

1.0

3.6

1.3

1.2

2.5

0.9

0.5

2.8

1.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.7

1.1

3.1

2.5

1.6

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.0

1.4

2.8

2.5

1.7

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

1.3

1.5

4.0

3.7

3.2

2.5

1.8

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

1.7

1.6

1.9

5.0

6.0

6.8

5.7

4.6

2.4

1.8

2.8

1.7

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

1.8

1.8

1.9

2.3

4.4

7.2

7.4

7.0

8.1

4.4

3.0

2.9

2.9

2.9

1.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

1.5

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

1.2

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.0

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.7

1.2

0.8

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.3

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.4

1.0

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.7

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.1

1.1

0.9

1.3

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.9

1.9

1.9

1.9

1.7

1.6

1.6

1.8

1.6

1.3

0.9

1.4

1.8

2.1

2.4

2.2

2.2

2.5

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.7

2.5

2.6

2.5

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.1

1.8

1.4

0.6

1.2

1.8

2.2

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.1

3.2

3.1

3.1

3.4

3.4

3.1

3.1

3.2

3.1

3.1

2.9

2.5

2.1

1.8

0.7

1.5

2.2

2.6

3.0

3.6

4.0

4.0

3.9

3.6

3.7

4.0

4.0

3.7

3.6

3.9

4.0

4.0

3.5

2.9

2.5

2.1

0.8

1.5

2.3

3.0

3.7

4.0

3.7

3.4

3.8

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.1

4.0

4.1

3.8

3.4

3.6

3.8

3.5

2.7

2.0

0.9

1.6

2.3

3.0

4.0

4.1

3.6

3.3

3.6

4.4

4.0

3.8

3.8

4.0

4.4

3.6

3.2

3.5

3.9

3.6

2.6

1.9

1.1

1.9

2.6

3.3

4.1

4.3

3.6

3.3

3.7

4.3

4.0

3.9

3.9

4.1

4.3

3.7

3.3

3.5

4.0

3.7

2.7

2.0

1.3

2.2

3.0

3.5

3.9

4.2

4.2

3.9

4.0

3.9

4.0

4.2

4.2

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.1

3.9

3.4

2.8

2.3

1.6

2.5

3.2

3.4

3.7

4.0

4.1

3.9

3.8

3.4

3.5

3.9

3.9

3.5

3.5

3.8

3.9

4.0

3.6

3.1

2.7

2.2

2.0

2.8

3.3

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.3

3.0

3.1

3.0

3.2

3.5

3.5

3.2

3.1

3.2

3.0

3.2

3.3

2.9

2.5

2.1

3.2

3.4

2.4

1.9

3.3

3.1

3.1

3.0

2.8

2.4

2.4

2.2

1.7

2.4

3.4

3.0

2.7

2.5

2.4

1.9

2.1

2.1

1.8

2.2

3.1

2.7

2.5

2.1

2.0

1.7

1.9

2.1

2.3

2.1

2.5

2.5

2.3

2.1

2.2

1.8

2.0

2.4

3.2

1.9

2.2

2.3

2.2

2.1

2.5

2.1

2.1

2.9

4.3

1.7

2.0

2.1

2.0

2.0

2.5

3.0

4.4

1.5

1.8

1.9

1.9

1.8

2.1

2.7

3.5

2.5

1.7

2.0

2.1

2.0

1.9

2.1

2.6

2.6

2.0

0.9

2.0

2.3

2.3

2.2

2.1

2.2

2.9

2.3

1.5

0.6

2.1

2.6

2.5

2.3

2.1

2.2

2.6

2.1

1.2

2.2

3.1

2.7

2.4

2.1

2.1

2.9

2.1

2.4

3.3

2.9

2.5

2.1

2.2

3.0

2.4

2.8

2.5

3.3

2.5

2.2

2.6

2.6

2.5

2.2

3.8

2.8

2.1

2.4

2.5

2.4

2.1

1.9

2.3

4.3

3.3

1.8

2.2

2.4

2.4

2.1

1.8

1.7

3.4

7.2

3.7

2.0

2.4

2.6

3.0

6.8

3.6

2.2

2.6

2.7

3.0

4.4

3.1

2.3

2.9

2.8

2.7

3.1

2.5

2.4

3.4

3.0

3.0

3.2

2.4

2.3

3.3

2.8

2.9

2.8

2.4

2.0

2.7

2.5

2.3

1.8

1.2

0.9

0.9

2.9

2.4

1.8

2.1

2.0

1.9

1.6

1.3

0.9

3.2

2.6

1.5

1.7

1.8

1.7

1.5

3.3

2.7

1.1

1.4

1.6

1.7

3.1

2.5

1.0

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.9

2.8

2.3

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.8

2.0

2.2

2.1

2.1

2.4

3.1

3.9

4.0

4.6

4.7

5.3

4.0

3.6

3.6

3.0

2.8

2.5

2.1

0.8

1.0

1.3

1.8

2.1

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.6

2.5

2.3

2.6

2.9

3.1

3.1

3.2

3.1

2.9

2.6

2.2

1.7

1.2

1.7

2.1

2.6

3.1

3.2

2.8

2.5

2.4

2.2

2.4

2.5

2.8

3.3

3.4

3.2

2.7

2.3

1.9

1.5

1.0

1.4

1.8

2.1

2.5

2.5

2.3

2.2

2.1

1.8

2.0

2.2

2.3

2.6

2.8

2.6

2.3

2.0

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

9.4

0.9 0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.10.20.20.20.30.20.20.20.30.50.70.60.40.30.20.20.20.30.50.60.50.30.20.10.10.20.20.40.60.60.50.30.30.20.20.10.10.10.10.10.10.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2

LC2

LC2

LD
LD

LD

LD

LD

LD
LD

LA

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B B B B B B B B B B
B

B

B

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

E

E

E

E

C

C C

C C

C

C

CCCCC

C C

C

C

C

C C

C C C C C
C

SITE LIGHTING VALUES AT GRADE
Scale  1" = 30'

LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS

No. Label X Y MH Orientation

Location

1 LC2 59.7 181.5 25.0 88.0

2 LC2 62.9 86.4 25.0 88.0

3 LD 133.1 16.7 25.0 -2.0

4 LD 230.4 19.8 25.0 -2.0

5 LD 317.9 22.3 25.0 -2.0

6 LD 416.6 186.8 25.0 268.0

7 LD 418.6 95.4 25.0 268.0

8 LD 341.9 246.5 25.0 178.0

9 LD 256.8 243.5 25.0 178.0

10 LA 160.6 239.3 25.0 178.0

11 B 126.5 97.1 3.5 178.0

12 B 126.2 107.1 3.5 178.0

13 B 355.3 120.8 3.5 178.0

14 B 355.9 109.4 3.5 178.0

15 B 355.2 97.3 3.5 178.0

16 B 371.3 125.1 3.5 178.0

17 B 371.1 137.0 3.5 178.0

18 B 370.7 148.9 3.5 178.0

19 B 370.1 160.9 3.5 178.0

20 B 370.1 169.5 3.5 178.0

21 B 126.9 85.4 3.5 178.0

22 B 138.9 85.6 3.5 178.0

23 B 152.9 86.2 3.5 178.0

24 B 164.9 86.5 3.5 178.0

25 B 176.8 87.0 3.5 178.0

26 B 189.1 87.4 3.5 178.0

27 B 200.9 87.7 3.5 178.0

28 B 212.9 88.1 3.5 178.0

29 B 224.8 88.6 3.5 178.0

30 B 236.3 90.0 3.5 178.0

31 B 249.0 93.1 3.5 178.0

32 B 260.7 97.4 3.5 178.0

33 B 271.0 103.2 3.5 178.0

34 D 145.7 111.5 9.0 270.0

35 D 120.7 143.3 9.0 270.0

LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS

No. Label X Y MH Orientation

Location

36 D 157.4 183.2 9.0 90.0

37 D 175.3 175.9 9.0 0.0

38 D 361.1 183.4 9.0 90.0

39 D 361.4 167.7 9.0 90.0

40 D 333.1 118.9 9.0 180.0

41 E 285.7 104.9 8.0 90.0

42 E 286.8 72.7 8.0 90.0

43 E 311.3 105.8 8.0 270.0

44 E 312.4 73.8 8.0 270.0

45 C 291.1 187.1 6.0 180.0

46 C 282.9 102.5 6.0 0.0

47 C 314.5 103.5 6.0 0.0

48 C 283.8 70.5 6.0 0.0

49 C 315.6 71.4 6.0 0.0

50 C 349.9 138.7 6.0 -90.0

51 C 350.3 125.6 6.0 -90.0

52 C 304.8 211.0 6.0 180.0

53 C 278.7 210.2 6.0 180.0

54 C 267.5 209.9 6.0 180.0

55 C 241.6 209.0 6.0 180.0

56 C 219.1 208.4 6.0 180.0

57 C 267.0 218.9 6.0 180.0

58 C 278.5 219.1 6.0 180.0

59 C 196.2 207.4 6.0 180.0

60 C 150.5 106.6 6.0 90.0

61 C 150.6 98.2 6.0 90.0

62 C 159.1 91.3 6.0 0.0

63 C 168.8 91.6 6.0 0.0

64 C 193.5 99.6 6.0 6.5

65 C 206.6 98.9 6.0 0.0

66 C 219.7 98.4 6.0 0.0

67 C 232.5 100.0 6.0 -5.4

68 C 244.9 102.0 6.0 -11.8

69 C 258.1 105.3 6.0 -10.3

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

Symbol Label Qty File Lumens LLF WattsCatalog Number Description Lamp

LA 1 DSX1_LED_60
C_1000_50K_T
4M_MVOLT.ie

s

Absolute 0.93 209

LC2 2 DSX1_LED_60
C_1000_50K_T
5M_MVOLT.ie

s

Absolute 0.93 418

LD 7 DSX1_LED_60
C_1000_50K_T
4M_MVOLT_H

S.ies

Absolute 0.93 209

B 23 BRMFL-4-4L35-
-40-120.ies

Absolute 0.90 29.97

C 25 ITL73636.IES Absolute 0.70 34.3

D 7 WST_LED_1_1
0A700_40K_S
R4_MVOLT.ies

Absolute 0.70 24.2

E 4 ITL62258.ies 1200 0.70 200

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 60C 1000 50K
T4M MVOLT
(SINGLE - 25'
POLE HTG)

DSX1 LED WITH (2) 30
LED LIGHT ENGINES,
TYPE T4M OPTIC, 5000K,
@ 1000mA

LED

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 60C 1000 50K
T5M MVOLT (TWIN
- 25' POLE HTG)

DSX1 LED WITH (2) 30
LED LIGHT ENGINES,
TYPE T5M OPTIC, 5000K,
@ 1000mA

LED

LITHONIA #DSX1
LED 60C 1000 50K
T4M MVOLT HS
(SINGLE - 25'
POLE HTG)

DSX1 LED WITH (2) 30
LED LIGHT ENGINES,
TYPE T4M OPTIC, 5000K,
@ 1000mA WITH HOUSE
SIDE SHIELD

LED

SELUX - MTR
BOLLARD
#BRMFL-3.5-4L35-
40-120

LED BOLLARD, DIE
CAST ALUMINUM
LUMINAIRE COVER,
GASKETED, MULTI-
PRISM REFLECTION
SHIELDING, LED
ALUMINUM FITTLER,
SURGE PROTECTOR

LED

SPI LIGHTING INC -
- STILE SERIES
#SEW11287-
L26.8WA-24V-PS

LED WALL SCONCE
WITH WHITE FROSTED
ACRYLIC SHIELD, WET
LOCATION

26 WATT LED LAMPING

LIGHTWAY #TUSQ-
-12-LED-U 18W-4-
CEG

WEDGE WALL MUNTED
LUMINAIRE, STEEL
HOSUING, CLEAR
TEMPERED GLASS
LENS, LED, INTEGRAL
MOUNTING PLATE,
DARK SKY COMPLIANT

LED

SPI - ECHO
ROUND SERIES
#EEW9802-
1M175PS-PW

FABRICATED WHITE
PAINTED METAL
HOUSING WITH CAST
WHITE PAINTED METAL
END PLATES,
FABRICATED PEENED
METAL REFLECTOR
WITH PREMIUM
SPECULAR FINISH,
CLEAR FLAT GLASS
LENS WITH RED
PAINTED LINEAR
PATTERN AT
SOCKET/LAMP TIP
ENDS. LENS SECURED
WITH FORMED BLACK
PAINTED METAL
BRACKET.

ONE 175 WATT PULSE
START METAL HALIDE
LAMP

STATISTICS

Description       Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

PARKING & DRIVE
VALUES AT GRADE

2.7 fc 7.2 fc 0.6 fc 12.0:1 4.5:1

0.4 fc 0.9 fc 0.0 fc N / A N / A

1.2 fc 9.4 fc 0.0 fc N / A N / A

PROPERTY LINE VALUES
AT GRADE

SITE VALUES

NOTES

 1.  SEE MH COLUMN OF LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS FOR MOUNTING HEIGHTS.

 2.  SEE LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE FOR LIGHT LOSS FACTORS.

 3.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT GRADE SURFACE.

 

 THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT 

 TO EXISTING / FUTURE FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS 

 CALCULATED FROM LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

 ILLUMINATING ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S

 LUMINAIRE MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER

 VARIABLE FIELD CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

  

  THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING 

  ANALYSIS OF LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.    THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT

 IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND

 LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE. 

 

  



  PC 2013.11.12 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: November 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Chatwal 

Estates, 15 units/lots, North side of Wattles, West of Rochester, Section 15, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
 
The petitioner Fazal Khan & Associates, Inc. submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval application for a 15-unit site condominium.  The property is currently zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District.  The Planning Commission is responsible for granting 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval for site condominium applications.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Chatwal Estates Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Chatwal Estates\PC Memo 11 12 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Chatwal Estates, 15 
units/lots, North side of Wattles, West of Rochester, Section 15, Currently Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-11- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Chatwal Estates Site 
Condominium, 15 units/lots, North side of Wattles, West of Rochester, Section 15, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Install left turn passing lane. 
2. Add deceleration lane on Wattles. 
3. Connect the internal sidewalk to Wattles Road sidewalk. 
4. Offset the internal sidewalk from the back of curb around the cul-de-sac. 
5. Provide an access drive to the detention pond.   
6. Provide landscape calculations on landscape plan. 
7. Provide four (4) additional street trees and better distribute street trees along 

Wattles Road. 
8. Diversify variety of street trees. 
9. Provide the seed mix for the detention facility. 
10. Add additional evergreen trees to screen the entire cul-de-sac. 

 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Chatwal Estates\Proposed Resolution 2013 11 12.doc 



Chatwal Estates Site Condominium

1: 1,885

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1570314 314Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

8/28/2013

Legend:



Chatwal Estates Site Condominium

1: 2,513

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2090419 419Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

8/28/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

 
 
 

 Date:  November 4, 2013 
 

 

Site Condominium Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Joe Maniaci 
 
Project Name: Chatwel Estates 
 
Plan Date: November 4, 2013 
 
Location: North side of Wattles Road, west of Rochester Road 
 
Zoning: R1-C, One-family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Site Condominium Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a site condominium application which includes a site plan, landscape plan, 
topographic survey, tree preservation plan, wetlands letter, and application forms.  The 4.9 acre site is a 
combination of three parcels.  Two of the three parcels are improved to include a single family home on 
each.  The center parcel, which is 3.5 acres and the largest, has never been developed and is heavily 
wooded.  The applicant proposes a 14-lot site condominium. A detention pond is proposed at the 
southeast corner of the development adjacent to Wattles Road.  This development will be served by a 
new private road off Wattles Road. 
 
   



Chatwal Estates 
November 4, 2013 

2 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
 
North side of Wattles Road, west of Rochester Road 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
 
The parcel is 4.9 net acres  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
 
The 4.9 acre site is a combination of three parcels.  Two of the three parcels are improved to include a 
single family home on each.  The center parcel, which 3.5 acres and the largest, has never been 
developed and is heavily wooded. 
 
Current Zoning: 
 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One-family Residential District.  
 
Surrounding Property Details: 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  R-1C, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 
South R-1C, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 

Approximate Location of Site Development  



Chatwal Estates 
November 4, 2013 

3 

East R-1C, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 
West R-1C, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 

 

SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 
The proposed development is arranged to accommodate fourteen (14) residential structures along a 
private road north of Wattles Road that terminates in a cul-de-sac.    

The lot range in size between 9,947 sq/ft and 17,968 square feet.  The average lot size is 11,756 square 
feet.   The applicant is applying the lot size averaging option, permitted and regulated by Section 10.01.  
All proposed average lot width and average lot areas are within the permitted range described by 
Section 10.01.  
 
The southeast corner of the site will be used for stormwater management. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
Table 4.06.C establishes the requirements for the R-1C District. The requirements and the proposed 
dimensions are as follows: 
 

*The lot size average option has been applied and Section 10.01 standards have been met. 
 
Items to be addressed: None. 
 

  Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Front 30 feet 30 feet Complies 

Rear 40 feet 40 feet Complies 

Side 10 feet 10 feet Complies 

Average Lot Size per 
Unit* 

10,500 sq/ft w/sewer 10,500 average Complies 

Minimum Lot Size* 9,450  sq/ft 9,947  sq/ft Complies 

Lot Width* 76.5 feet 76.5 feet Complies 

Maximum Height 2 ½ stories 2 stories Complies 

Maximum Lot Area 
Covered by Buildings 

30% 22% Complies 

Minimum Floor Area 
per Unit 

1,200  sq/ft 2,769  sq/ft Complies 



Chatwal Estates 
November 4, 2013 

4 

SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
The 14-unit site condominium development is accessed via a private drive off Wattles Road.   Wattles is 
a 2-lane road at this location so the following are required per the Development Standards: 

a. Left Turn Passing lane - Extend the center turn lane along Wattles Road through the site 
driveway so that the site traffic can make left turns without blocking the eastbound through 
traffic and for storage of left turning vehicles.   

b. Deceleration lane - for right turning traffic into the site. 
 
The applicant has shown an internal 5-foot wide sidewalk.  The internal sidewalks must connect to the 8-
foot sidewalk on Wattles.  In addition, the sidewalk around the cul-de-sac must be offset from back of 
curb as proposed for the rest of the 5’ sidewalk. Lastly, the applicant must provide an access drive to the 
detention pond.   
 
Items to be addressed:  1). Extend left turn passing lane; 2). Add deceleration lane: 3). Connect internal 
sidewalk to Wattles Road sidewalk; 4). Offset sidewalk from back of curb around cul-de-sac; and 5). 
Provide an access drive to the detention pond.   
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Wetlands: The site includes a 4.25 acre wetland.  The 
applicant received a letter from MDEQ in July stating that 
this wetland is not state regulated.   In addition, there are no 
local requirements to prevent the applicant from filling this 
wetland.   
 
Woodlands: The site is heavily wooded.   The applicant has 
submitted a tree survey, however the survey does not 
indicate the quality and species of the identified trees.  It 
appears that based on the landscape plan, there will be no 
tree preserved on site.  
 
Items to be addressed: None.  
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The Landscape Plan includes a mix of evergreen and deciduous trees.  All proposed species fall within 
Troy regulations and are not prohibited.  Site condominium and subdivision landscaping are regulated 
by Section 13.02.F.2.  The applicant has not provided the landscape calculations on the landscape plan.  
This must be provided.  
 
 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Frontage Screening  
 
 

One evergreen tree for 
every 30 lineal feet.  
290 feet = 10 trees 6 Linden 

Deficient by 4 trees.  Also 
trees need to be 
distributed along Wattles 
Road frontage.  The trees 
are located between the 



Chatwal Estates 
November 4, 2013 

5 

new 8’ sidewalk and edge 
of Wattles Road.   There 
is to be no landscaping 
proposed in the Wattles 
Road ROW, other than 
turf restoration.   

Greenbelt Street Trees 
(Chatwal Court) 

1 tree for every 50 
linear feet.  27 Maples 

Cannot be determined.  
Landscape calculation 

was not provided.   
 
The applicant has utilized one species for the street trees along Wattles and one species in the interior 
of the site.  Due to disease, the ordinance requires a mix of species. The applicant shall include greater 
variety of street trees.   The applicant shall also indicate the proposed seed mix for the detention facility.  
Lastly, the applicant has provided seven (7) 6-foot high White Spruce to screen the cul-de-sac from the 
adjacent property to the north.  The seven (7) White Spruce only screen part of the cul-de-sac.  
Additional evergreen trees should be added.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Provide landscape calculations on landscape plan; 2). Provide four (4) 
additional trees along Wattles Road; 3). Relocate proposed street trees on Wattles outside of ROW; 4). 
Diversify variety of street trees; 5). Provide seed mix for detention facility; and 6).  Add additional 
evergreen trees to screen the entire cul-de-sac. 
 
STORMWATER DETENSION 
 
A stormwater detention area is demonstrated in the southeast corner of the development.   The City 
Engineer has reviewed the preliminary plans for the detention facility.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 10.02.E. regulates physical improvements associated with condominium projects.  It requires the 
following:  
 
1. Principal access and circulation through a site condominium shall be provided by public streets 
constructed to City standards, within sixty (60) foot wide rights-of-way. Secondary access and circulation 
through such developments, on which some of the residential parcels may have their sole frontage, may 
be provided by twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within 
forty (40) foot private easements for public access. Not applicable as applicant is providing private 
street. 
 
2. Principal access to site condominium of five (5) acres or less in area may be provided by way of 
twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within forty (40) foot 
private easements for public access, when in the opinion of the City Council the property configuration is 
such that the provision of conforming dwelling unit parcels is impractical. Satisfied. 
 



Chatwal Estates 
November 4, 2013 

6 

3. All entrances to major or secondary thoroughfares shall include deceleration, acceleration and passing 
lanes as required by Engineering Standards of the City of Troy. Not applicable. 
 
4. Sidewalks shall be constructed, in accordance with City Standards, across the frontage of all dwelling 
unit parcels. Utilities shall be placed within street rights-of-way, or within easements approved as to size 
and location by the City Engineer. Satisfied. 
 
5. All shall be served by public water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and detention/retention systems 
constructed to City standards, at the expense of the developer. Easements over these systems shall be 
conveyed and recorded before occupancy permits are issued for dwelling units. The applicant has 
proposed full utilities, but all proposed configurations and easements are subject to approval by the 
City engineering department. 
 
As noted above, all condominium projects are subject to Section 8.05.A.7, which establishes the 
requirements for a preliminary site plan submittal.  Three additional requirements are specifically 
identified for residential projects. The three additional requirements, identified in 8.05.A.7.o, include: 
 
i. Calculation of the dwelling unit density allowable and a statement of the number of dwelling units, by 
type, to be provided. Satisfied. 
 
ii. Topography on site and fifty (50) feet beyond, drawn at two (2) foot contour intervals, with existing 
drainage courses, flood plains, wetlands, and tree stands indicated. Satisfied. 
 
iii. The typical floor plans and elevations of the proposed buildings, with building height(s). Satisfied. 
 
Items to be Addressed: none 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We recommend that the Planning Commission approve the preliminary site condominium application, 
as conditioned on the applicant satisfying the following requirements as part of the final site plan 
submittal: 

1. Install left turn passing lane. 
2. Add deceleration lane on Wattles. 
3. Connect the internal sidewalk to Wattles Road sidewalk. 
4. Offset the internal sidewalk from the back of curb around the cul-de-sac. 
5. Provide an access drive to the detention pond.   
6. Provide landscape calculations on landscape plan. 
7. Provide four (4) additional street trees and better distribute street trees along Wattles Road. 
8. Diversify variety of street trees. 
9. Provide the seed mix for the detention facility. 
10. Add additional evergreen trees to screen the entire cul-de-sac. 

 



Chatwal Estates 
November 4, 2013 

7 

 

Cc:  Joseph Maniaci (JManiaci@mondrianproperties.com) 

 

mailto:JManiaci@mondrianproperties.com�




























 

G:\PLANNING COMMISSION\Meeting Schedules\2014 Public Notice Meeting Schedule.docx 
 

CITY OF TROY 
MICHIGAN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Michigan State Law, Notice is hereby given that the Planning 
Commission of the City of Troy will hold Public Meetings in the City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan, (248) 524-3364, on the following dates: 
 
 

2014 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING DATES 
 

Date Meeting 
 
January 14 Regular1 
January 28 Special/Study2 
 
February 11 Regular1 

 
 
March 11 Regular1 
March 25 Special/Study2 
 
April  8 Regular1 
April 22 Special/Study2 
 
May 13 Regular1 
May 27 Special/Study2 
 
June 10 Regular1 

 June 24 Special/Study2

Date Meeting 
 
July  8 Regular1 
July 22 Special/Study2 
 
August 12 Regular1 
August 26 Special/Study2 
 
September  9 Regular1 
September 23 Special/Study2 
 
October 14 Regular1 
October 28 Special/Study2 
 
November 11 Regular1 

November 25 Special/Study2 
 
December  9 Regular1 
December 23 Special/Study2 
 

 
 
All of the above Regular1 meetings will be held in the City Council Chambers of the City Hall Building 
at 7:00 p.m. and are Open to the Public. 
 
All of the above Special/Study2 meetings will be held in Council Board Room of the City Hall Building 
at 7:00 p.m. and are Open to the Public. 
 
This notice is hereby posted as required by Section 4 of the Open Meetings Act (MCLA 15.261 et seq.) 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      R. Brent Savidant, AICP / PCP 

Planning Director 
 
Posted:  [date] 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 
PROPOSED RESOLUTION 

 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-11- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Planning Commission hereby establishes the following 

schedule for their meetings during the calendar year 2014: 
 
1. Regular Meetings will be held on the second Tuesday of each month.  
2. Special/Study Meetings will be held on the fourth Tuesday of each month, as 

necessary, with the exception of February 25 (due to election). 
3. If additional Special/Study Meetings become necessary, alternate Special/Study 

Meeting dates may be set at the discretion of the Commission. 
 
Yes: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 
 


	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	October 22, 2013

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 989)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	7. PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM PLAN REVIEW
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2) 
	Planning Department Report
	Site Plan

	8. 2014 MEETING SCHEDULE
	2014 Meeting Dates
	Proposed Resolution

	9. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS



